
United Nat ions 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
EIGHTH SESSION 
Ofjicial Records 

CONTENTS 
P4tt 

The Tuni sian question (co11timtcd) .. .. ... ... ........... 103 

Chairman: J\lr. F. VAN LANGENHOVE (Belgium). 

The Tunisian question ( A/2405 and Add. I, A/ 
C.l/L.64) (continued) 

[Item 56]* 

1. :Mr. TSARAPKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
H.epublics) r ecalled that the Tunisian question, which 
resembled the :Moroccan question in several points, had 
its origin in the establishment of a protectorate over 
a sovereign territory by force. Several representatives 
had questioned the validity of the Treaty of Bardo and 
the La Marsa Convention; however that might be, it 
\Vas well to note that, according to the actual text of 
article 2 of the Treaty of Bardo, the Protectorate had 
been basically a temporary institution, which had not 
deprived Tunisia of its personality as a State. 

2. The fact that the national aspirations of the 
Tunisian people were becoming more apparent every 
day and that, despite French obstruction, often of a 
brutal nature, the desire for self-government was be­
coming more and more evident, showed that the 
United Nations should and must study that item of 
its agenda. 

3. Two arguments had been put forward in objection 
to its discussion: first, it had been claimed that the 
Assembly had no competence in the matter and that, 
in consequence of the Treaty of Bardo and the La 
Marsa Convention which governed relations between 
France and Tunisia, the Tunisian question was a purely 
internal French question; secondly, it had been main­
tained that it was in the interests of both France and 
Tunisia to le.1Ve the two parties in question to reach 
a satisfactory agreement by negotiation. 

4. Those two arguments were without foundation. 
The question of the Assembly's competence had already 
been settled by the fact that the Assembly had agreed 
to deal with the Tunisian question and had even 
adopted resolution 611 (VII). As for the second argu­
ment, that was only a pretext for adjourning the ques­
tion with a view to maintaining the status quo. 
5. There was no doubt, however, that the one aim 
of the French policy towards Tunisia was to transform 
that territory into a mere colony. Thus, in a population 
comprising 3,500,000 Arabs and 140,000 French set­
tlers, the latter had appropriated a considerable area of 
the cultiv:J.blc land. Offici:.!! statistics showed that the 

*IndicatE's the item m:mber on the agenca o f the General 
Assembly. 

103 

FIRST COMMITIEE, 6(6tb 
MEETING 

Friday, 23 October 1953, 
at 3 p.m. 

New York 

average area of arable land per settler was 200 hec­
tares, as against two hectares held by Tunisian farmers. 
The systematic exploitation of all the country's natural 
resources was another factor of French policy. In the 
last twenty-four years, 70,000,000 tons of phosphates 
had been exported, not to speak of bauxite, iron and 
manganese, from all of which French and American 
capital had made tremendous profits. By transforming 
Tunisia into a reservoir of raw materials for the 
exclusive benefit of France, the French administration 
was hindering the development of Tunisian industry. 

6. The memorandum of 16 March 1953, addressed to 
the President of the General Assembly ( A/2371), 
and the attached letter, described the anti-democratic 
policy adopted by France towards Tunisian nationals. 
The system of courts martial and constant opposition 
to the most fundamental civil liberties was undoubtedly 
contrary to the most elementary principles of the 
Charter. Since the situation which had induced the 
representatives of fifteen countries of Africa and Asia 
to bring the matter before the Security Council in 
January 19521 had only grown worse, a fresh appeal 
had been made to that body in April 19522• Owing to 
the joint opposition of France, the United Kingdom 
and the United States, that attempt had failed and 
the situation had deteriorated. On 20 June 1952, thir­
teen African and Asian Powers had requested a special 
session of the General Assembly ( A/2137). The request 
had not been met but finally, at the seventh session of 
the General Assembly, the Tunisian question had been 
entered on the agenda. A really constructive draft 
resolution had been submitted by the same States as 
had requested the inclusion of the item in the agenda, 
but it had been rejected and the Assembly had adopted 
resolution 611 (VII), which had in fact proved inade­
quate to ensure respect for the legitimate rights of the 
Tunisian people. The course of events had indeed 
shown that instead of applying the General Assembly's 
recommendations, France had ignored them and had 
merely intensified the repressive nature of its policy. 

7. Some representatives had already shown that, far 
from leading Tunisia towards self-government, such 
measures were calculated to strengthen the predominat­
ing position of the French settlers and to lead to a 
real annexation of the territory. The explanatory mem­
orandum presented to the General Assembly (A/2405/ 
Add.l) censured that policy, which was repudiated 
by all Tunisian political organizations and which only 
aggravated the situation in a dangerous way. Reference 
must also be made to the attitude of the United States 
of America, which had already established a network 
of military bases in the territory. Attention had been 

1 See Official Records of the S ecurity Council, Seventh 
Y car, Sttpplcmcnt fo r April, M a}' and Jwz c 1952, document 
S/2508. 

2 Ibid., documents S/2574-S/2584 inclusive. 

AjC.ljSR.646 



104 General Assembly-Eighth Session-First Committee 

drawn to that fact again and again, in particular by 
the n~wspaper France actuelle, which in December 
1952 had mentioned Tunisia as one of the strongholds 
of the defensive system of the United States in North 
Africa. Thus it could be said that the freedom and 
independence of a people were being sacrificed to the 
plans oi aggressive American circles. There was no 
doubt that such activities were directly contrary to 
the Charter in general, and to Article 1 in particular. 

8. J n an attempt to remedy the situation, which 
showed that the French Government had not fulfilled 
its ohli~ations , some Powers of 1\ frica and Asia had 
prcs~ntcd a draft resolution ( 1\jC.ljL.M), whose 
recommendations, modest as thev were, should he 
regarded as a minimum. The draft ur~ed respect for 
the right of peoples to self-determination and the right 
of citizens to enjoy the most elementary democratic 
liberties. 

9. The USSR rlelegation was of the opinion that, if 
carried out, the draft resolution was calculated to play 
a positin part in the settlement of the question, in the 
interests both of the Tunisian people themselves and 
of all peace-loving peoples. It would therefore vote in 
favonr of the draft resolution. 

10. ?.Jr . CHAMANDI (Yemen) said the debates at 
the seventh and the p:·esent sessions of the General 
Assembly had stressed the legal and human aspects of 
the Tunisian question and demonstrated the competence 
of the United Nations in the matter. That being so. it 
would seem that those who had opposed its discussion, 
basing themselves on Article 2, paragraph 7, of the 
Charter, had not fully understood the gravity of the 
situation in Tunisia. The absence of France was par­
ticularly regrettable, for that country's co-operation 
would have greatly facilitated the settlement of the 
probkm, but its attitude of opposition did at least show 
with what severity it intended to act towards Tunisia. 
It had also exposed the real aims of the imperialist 
Powers, which were both preaching the maintenance 
of pe:1ce and democratic institutions and criticizing 
the policy of certain East European States in the 
Security Council. 

11. It was a fact th:1t, in spite of treaties which, al­
though imposed by France, had not deprived Tunisia 
of its sovereignty and independence, that country, 
seventy years after their signature. still did not enjoy 
real ~overeignty. The origin of the Franco-Tunisian 
dispute by in a fundamental divergence of opinion. 
\Vhilc France had accepted the principle of a Tunisian 
system of government, it demanded the participation of 
French nationals in the operation of Tunisian political 
institutions. The measures which France intended to 
introduce as reforms in connexion with the representa­
tion of the Tunisian people in its dected assemblies 
were nullified hy the insistence on retaining French 
clements from top to bottom of the Tunisian administra­
tion. 

12. To justify sttch a demand, which was condemned 
by many juris t~, Fr:mcc claimed that its nationals had 
acqnin.:d certai 1 ~ ri~hts hv their technical assistance and 
their contributions to the budget. It should be pointed 
out that such budgetary assistance really amounted to 
no mo:-<: than a loan repayable with interest. To accept 
st:ch a view would be a negation of the treaties and 
:1~:· r· c n~ 2nt s hv which th•2 two cnuntries were bound 
a! d of the pri:1cipks cf i:<tcrnational law relating to 

mutual a ssist:~nce among nations. On 9 January 1952, 
the Tunisian Government had refuted the French con­
tention, in a letter addressed to Mr. Robert Schuman. 
France had replied to that letter by a number of acts 
of viol ence , the forced resignation of the Government 
of Mohammed Chenik and the deportation and im­
prisonment of a number of eminent Tunisians. 

13. 1\mong those measures and the violent incidents 
which had followed, he would mention the assassina­
tion of Hedi Chaker, an eminent nationalist leader, 
on 13 September 1953, the assasination of Beshir Ben 
Mabrouk, Secretary-General of the Agriculturists 
Union, on 11 August 1<)53 and the assassination of 
Mohammed Den Beshir Ben Fad!. President of the 
local N eo-Des tour organization and Secretary-General 
of the ,\gTiculturists Union in Mcnzcl-Teminc, o:1 18 
August 1953. The last two were shot dead hy French 
soldiers. at their homes in the presence of their wives 
and children. 

14. Those few examples of the incidents which had 
taken place after the adoption of resolution 611 (VII) 
expressing confidence that the French Government 
would do what it could to secure a settlement of the 
Tunisian question were no different from the events 
which had been brought to the attention of the General 
Assembly in the first place. 

15. Such incidents were particularly serious. Both 
respect for right and justice and concern for the main­
tenance of the prestige of the United Nations made it 
the duty of the First Committee to face the Tunisian 
problem courageously in order to discover the correct 
way of settling it. 

16. The delegation of Yemen, which had joined a 
number of other delegations in submitting draft resolu­
tion A/C.l /L64, earnestly hoped that the draft 
would obtain the unanimous support of Memher States 
and that the French Government would reconsider its 
present attitude. 

17. Hr. ZEINEDDINE ( Svria) pointed out that 
France had never contested tl{e existence of Tunisian 
sovereignty. Such rights as it might have in Tunisia 
resulted from an international treaty governing the 
relations between the two countries. Despite a numher 
of special features, those relations were nevertheless of 
an international contractual nature which did certainly 
not permit of any doubts concerning the competence of 
the Assembly. 

18. It really seemed, therefore, that if the question 
of competrnce was raised whenever the Assembly pre­
pared to deal with the Tunisian question, it was not 
for any legal reason involved hut merely as a pretext 
used hy the colonial Powers and their friends to prevent 
any discussion relating to the liberation of Tunisia. 
Those Powers had supporters in the Assembly, but 
although by their influence they might succeed in pr~­
ducing majorities, or at any rate sufficiently large mi­
norities to hinder the adoption of practical resolutions, 
they certainly did not represent the maj_ority of wor!d 
opinion . Those same Powers had the nght of veto m 
the Security Council, but that was not enough for them 
to defend their own interests, for what they actually 
wanted was to be able to decide unilaterally in the 
Assembly whether a particular question was a matter 
of domestic competence or not. If the Assembly ac­
cepted such a unilateral deci~ion, it. would accept exer­
cise of a right of veto over tts actwns. It was strange 



646th Meeting- 23 October 1953 105 

to see those same Powers which objected to the exercise 
of the veto in the Security Council trying to introduce 
and use a disguised veto in the General Assembly. Such 
a veto would be even more dangerous than the veto 
practiced in the Security Council, for it could be used 
to stifle discussion. 

1 ?- At both the seventh and the present sessions the 
C·eneral Assembly had decided to study the Tunisian 

'questio:1 <1nd had implicitly recognized that it was really 
a question of the relations between two States: France 
and Tunisia. \Vhile the attitude of the colonial Powers, 
which were e:1.gcr to protect their immediate interests 
was undcrstamlable, it was not so easy to understand 
the support which those Powers managed to obtain 
from delegations which were very able and quite ready 
to expound such theories as that of the purely moral 
responsibility of the General Assemblv with regard to 
the right of peoples to self-determination, a theory for 
which, incidentally, no justification was to be found. 

20. It had been sufficiently demonstrated that the 
treaties b(:tween France and Tunisia had arisen out 
of an exceptional situation. Furthermore, those treaties, 
which had been imposed by force, had not been respect­
ed by Fr:wce, which had not fulfill ed its obligations. 
France and Tuni~ia should therefore resume negotia­
tions on the whole question, and it was there that, if 
neces~:try, the t\VO Powers might be assisted by the 
Vnited Nations. \Vhile the General Assembly was not 
a trilmnal and could not therefore consider the problem 
of the application of a treaty, it was nevertheless an 
international conference, competent to deal with matters 
brought to its attention and express its opinion in the 
form of a resolution. 

21. The most significant conclusion to be drawn from 
the discussion was that no speaker had gone so far as 
to approve of French policy in North Africa or to 
maintain that it was in accordance with the Franco­
Tunisian treaties or the Charter. The essence of the 
problem lay in the establishment of a privileged class 
enjoying many financial, economic and cultural advan­
tages in defiance of the existing treaties and of respect 
for the fundamental liberties of the Tunisian people. 
That class had two main methods of exploiting the 
Tunisian people. First, the method of direct rule was 
employed without any attempt to secure the tacit con­
sent of the population or the Tunisian authorities. 
Thus, when the Cl1cnik cabinet tried to open negotia­
tions with France, all the members of that cabinet were 
imprisoned or exiled. The second method was based 
on a system, similar to that ohtaining in Morocco, 
under which the real power did not lie with France 
itself, but was in the hands of the French settlers, 
assisted by their Tunisian acolytes. In Tunisia. the 
French settlers, through their organization the Ras­
semhlcment des Fran<;ais de Tunisie, prepared pro­
grammes which the French Government obediently 
executed. 
22. Thus, in the spring of 1950, when negotiations 
concerning structural reforms were to h::tve been started 
between Mr. Schuman and the Tunisian Government, 
the Rassemblement des Fran~ais de Tunisie had sent 
a note to the French Ministry of Foreign Affairs, ac­
comp::nied by a six-point political programme. The 
negotiatio:1s had beei~ interrupted, severe repressive 
measures had been instituted and the six points pro­
posed by the settlers had all been put into effect by the 
French Government, contrary to its own statements. 

Lastly, th::mks again to the influence of the Rassemble­
ment des Fran~ais de Tunisie, further reforms had 
been introduced for the purpose of giving the settlers 
not only the actual power but the legal power to direct 
the country's affairs. The fact was that the settlers were 
no more concerned with the interests of France than 
with those of Tunisia; their one concern was to protect 
their privileges. · 
23. Tlnt point deserved emphasis: France, in its 
Tunisian policy, was tending more and more to strength­
en the power of the settlers. It was they whom the 
French army protected and it w::ts in their interests 
that the strength of the army had been increased out 
of fear of the people's opposition. It really seemed as 
if Tunisian self-government, an objective preached by 
Mr. Perillier, the former Resident-General, was being 
forgotten in favour of a policy of interdependence 
within a purely colonial union. 

24. As the representative of Pakistan had said (64Sth 
meeting), France had no desire to negotiate in order to 
reach a compromise. In that respect, its methods were 
different from those applied earlier by other colonial 
Powers such as the United Kingdom and the Nether­
lands. In North Africa, the system was to apply the 
dictates of the soldiery to a people attempting to 
achieve liberation. It was claimed that France had to be 
in Tunisia in order to introduce reforms ; then later 
the pretext was that France had to remain in Tunisia 
to see that those reforms were carried out. The reforms 
in question, of course, were not political, economic or 
cultural reforms, but very limited reforms, often a 
mere semblance of reform, used by France as a pretext 
put forward to justify occupation for an indefinite 
period of time. France had been introducing reforms 
for seventy-two years, but in spite of an army which 
was always ready to impress upon the people that 
those reforms were just, the Tunisian people was not 
convinced. 
25. In studying the Tunisian question, it was im­
portant to realize the extent of the national liberation 
movement. At the seventh session, the French Minister 
for Foreign Affairs had said in his speech before the 
General Assembly that discussion of the Tunisian ques­
tion could only delude the Tunisian masses and provoke 
disturbances ( 392nd plenary meeting). He had even 
tried to link the debates in the Assembly with the 
Tunisian national liberation movement. In that con­
nexion, it would be well to refer briefly to the history 
of that movement. 
26. There was a highly developed national conscience 
in Tunisia. The prolonged and unremitting resistance 
to French domination for more than seventy years bore 
witness to that. Up to 1907 or 1908, there had been 
sporadic resistance movements which had recurred prac­
tically every year. In 1911, the Tunisian movement 
had taken the form of a politically organized movement 
of the people. Its leader had died in exile in 1911 
ancl the movement had been put down by the Diellaz 
massacre. In 1918, the Tunisian movement to secure 
democratic liberties had been reorganized under the 
name of Dcstour, which meant "constitution". The 
Destour had been dispersed and its leaders imprisoned, 
and it had had to reorganize under its present name 
of N eo-Des tour. 
27. The national liberation movement had gradually 
spread from the intelligentsia to the masses. During 
the war, it had reached the palace of the Bey thanks to 



106 General Assembly-Eighth Session-First Committee 

the sympathy of the Bey,_ who ~ad been quickly dep_?~ed 
by the French authorities. Smce 1946, the Tumstan 
movement had spread its branches in all areas of the 
country, either openly or secretly. In ~ugust 1946, 
Tunisian parties of every shade, trade umons and c~l­
tural organizations, had drawn up a programme whtch 
the representative of Syria read out to the Committee. 
In that report the watchwords of the Tuni~i?n libera­
tion movement were to be found: the cond1t10n of so­
vereignty which Tunisia had enjoyed in 1881, the signa­
ture of the treaties under compulsion, the theoretically 
provisional and pr~tective nature of those _agreeme~ts, 
their degeneration mto a pretext for coloma! explOlta­
tion in disregard of the most elementary interests of 
the Tunisian people, and the surrender of Tunisia to 
the Axis Powers during the war. For those reasons, 
the Tunisian N a tiona! Congress rejected the Protec­
torate regime and proclaimed the imprescriptible right 
of the Tunisian people to independence. 

28. Such was the programme upon which the Tunisian 
people had agreed and which served to direct their 
efforts. The movement had reached the palace of the 
Bey and had spread among the masses of the. people. 
It was rather like a change of season: Tumsta had 
passed from an atmosphere of renunciation and tacit 
acceptance to the expression of a powerful national 
liberation movement. 

29. The maturity of the Tunisian nation was obvious. 
It would enable the nation to promote the progress of 
the liberation movement until it triumphed in Tunisia 
as similar movements had prevailed in other countries 
which had already set themselves free. In those circum­
stances. it would be not only unjust and unreasonable 
but politically ill-advised to try to ignore the main 
factors of the situation and to delay a just and proper 
solution of the problem. 

30. lt might he asked what the Assembly could do. 
It was a fact that attempts to secure a settlement by 
diplomatic means had 1~roved f~tti)e. I~ seemed that, in 
order to influence certam colomahst Circles, there must 
be a situation like that at present prevailing in Indo­
China. or that the L'nited Nat ions must exercise moral 
pressure. The matter h~cl hccn ~ubmitt~d to tl_1e United 
Nations so that the Umtcd Natwns might hnng moral 
pressure to hear on Fr~nc~ and_ on Tunisia to crc:1te 
the atmosphere of gomhv1ll111 wl11ch a workable solutiOn 
might be found. 

31. The primary ohjec~i:·c of Nco-Des~ our_, as its 
name implied, was a rcvtsion of the constitution. ~he 
Dey was prepared to agree to it. That was nothmg 
new, for all who had studied l\loslem law knew the 
distinction it made hct\\'ccn imperium and dominium. 
Among the Arab peoples, authority h::td always b.een 
regarded as a delegation of powers conferred. by the 
people. That traditional c?nc?pt triumphed m 1857 
in Tunisia when the constttutwn granted by the Bey 
was the m~dcrn interpretation of the principle of popu­
lar sovereignty. What the Tunisian people really 
wanted therefore, was to enjoy once more a regime 
of whi~h they had, as it were, retained a nostalgic 
memory. 

32. In the past, the accession of a people to freedom 
had always been accompanied by bloodshed. Since the 
Charter, it was a matter of conscience for the United 
Nations for in a world where the Charter existed, the 
course of dewlopme:1t tow:trd liberty must be com-

pletely difierent and must be brought about by peaceful 
means. 

33. Syria was, of course, directly concerned with the 
Tunisian problem, but it was also deeply attached to 
the French people. The General Assembly could today 
help France to return to the policy of Mr. Robert 
Schuman, to establish in Tunisia a new order in which 
friendship would prevail. The Assembly could first 
exercise moral pressure and usc the powers conferred 
upon it by the Charter to put an end to the policy 
of dictatorship imposed upon Tunisia and to encourage 
diplomatic negotiations and agreements. It must then 
ensure the inception of a new era in which the Tunisian 
people could enjoy freedom and express it in general 
elections. Lastly, efforts must be made to abolish the 
system of domination and replace it by one of inter­
national co-operation. 

34. That was why the delegation of Syria, together 
with twelve other Powers, ha(l submitted draft resolu­
tion A/C.l/L.64. If the Assembly hesitated to act, the 
situation would soon become aggravated to such a 
point that it would scarcely any longer be capable of 
remedy. 

35. The Svrian delegation had associated itself with 
the preparation of the draft resolution in .recognition _of 
a dutv imposed by the Charter. It considered that Its 
mission was to help in re-establishing friendship be­
tween the Tunisian people and the French people. 
\Vhether such a development was desired or no!, Tu­
nisia was progressing towards independence and tf that 
progress were not assured in an orderly manner the 
situation might assume a form which would serve ~he 
interests of neither Tunisia nor France and whtch 
would not enhance the prestige and authority of the 
United Nations. 

36. The CHAIRMAN called upon those who wished 
to speak on draft resolution A/C.l/L.64. 

37. 1\Ir. HANII'AH (Indonesia) said the time had 
come to take action to help the Tunisian people whose 
trials could not be allowed to continue. 

38. The answer to resolution 611 (VII) had been a 
reign of terror. In December 1952 the Bey_ hac~ been 
forced to sign so-called reforms. The detcnoratl?n. of 
the situation and the failure to provide for negotiatiOn 
had cruelly belied the hopes that might have been 
entertained of a change of attitude on the part of 
France. 

39. \:Vhilc the participation of the Tunisians in the 
elections had been negligihlc. the French, or at :n~y 
rate, the settlers, had voted in strength to perpettwte 
their privikges. Jt shonld he nhserved. however, that, 
as h:1cl been stated in an article in Tlze N r<t' Y or!:: 
Times of ·t :\by 1953, it was the rightist Rasscmhle­
ment des Fran<;ais de Tunisie which had won the 
election, while the Socialist, like all the progressive 
elements, hacl tal.:cn no part. 
4 0. The persecution of the N eo-I?estour had taken the 
form of arrests. house arrest, cxtle and threats of all 
kinds, so that the organization had been driven under­
O'rotmd. The most scandalous outrages, on the other 
hand, had remained unpunished, particularly the assas­
sination of Farhat Hached. It was moving, therefore, 
to recall the appeal that victim of terrorism had made 
a year and a half earlier. peclaring that, in spite of ~he 
acts of violence, the Tuntstan people would never gn·e 



646th Meeting- 23 October 1953 107 

up its rights, Farhat Hachcd had admittecl that there 
was nothing to be hoped for from colonialism, which 
was unable to learn by experience, and he had asked 
the ~)nited Nations to intervene to promote a just 
solut1on of the Tunisian question. How could the United 
Nations disappoint the Tunisians, who did not wish 
to harm anyone but desired only to escape from the 
intimidation to which they were being subjected? 
41. The Tunisian question had many points of simi­
larity with the Moroccan question, both by reason 
of the objections which its inclusion in the agenda had 
evoked and by n~ason of the nature of the problem. In 
the first place, the procedural argument was no more 
than a scl 11 sh attempt to thwart the principle of the 
right of peoples to self-determination, a principle which 
was being sacrificed on the altar of the North Atlantic 
Treaty. Surely there was no need to wait until blood 
had hecn shed before the threat to peace could be 
perceived. 
42. The Indonesian delegation for its pa;·t was sorry 
to have to speak the harsh words which its conscience 
:md the gravity of the situation dictated. It would 
indeed be a very serious matter if the peoples suffered 
a total disappointment owing to the failure of the 
United Nations to take action, and it would be par­
ticularly regrettable if, in the name of collective secur­
ity, a people were refuscci the right of self-determina­
tion. It was in that spirit that Indonesia had joined 
other Powers in submitting the draft resolution con­
tained in document A/C.l/L.64. As was to be seen, 
the operative part of the draft was not too ambitious, 
for it merely recommended that the Tunisian people 
should be enabled to achieve sovereignty, that all the 
exceptional measures should be terminated and that 
genuine negotiations should be undertaken without 
delay. It was therefore to be hoped that in the case of 
Tuni sia the great Powers would show the foresight 
they had displayed on more than one occasion in the 
past. 

43. Mr. BARRINGTON (Burma) thought tha.t four 
approaches to the draft resolution ( AjC.ljL.64) were 
possible. The first was that the mere consideration 
of the question was illegal, in view of Article 2, para­
graph 7, of the Charter. The second was tha:t. while 
the General Assembly was competent to consider the 
question and to make recommendations, the draft 
resolution went further than the situation warranted. 
The third was that without being extreme the draft 
resolution was premature, since one year was not long 
enough for the resolution adopted at the seventh ses­
sion (611 (VII)) to have taken effect. The fourth 
was that the Assembly was competent and that the 
draft resolution was justified and timely. 
44. Among others, the representative of Pakistan had 
disposed of the argument based on domestic competence 
( 645th meeting). Treaties which even at the time they 
had been signed had been morally and legally invalid 
since they were based on force, were still more invalid 
today, when the French Government had been con­
victed of vi olating them. It was not surprising therefore 
that the French delegation had not even attempted the 
impossible task of submitting a defence. 
45. In the second place, a perusal of the draft would 
show how moderate it was: the · rights which it tried 
to secure for the Tunisian people, and especially the 
right to self-determination and to sovereignty and inde­
p~ndence, derived from the Charter. France itself was 

talking in terms of independence in the cases of Viet­
Nam, Laos and Cambodia. Since Tunisia was as ad­
vanced politically as •those countries, the only explana­
tion of the duality of French policy was the fact that 
in one of the two cases force had been employed. The 
case of Tunisia would therefore show whether recourse 
would have to be had to violence or whether the spirit 
of co-operation which it had been hoped to put into 
practice after the Second World War would prevail as 
the Charter required. 
46. In the third place, draft resolution A/C.ljL.64 
was not at all premature, since instead of relaxing 
the measures intended to violate the sovereignty of 
Tunisia, -France had only strengthened them. There 
could be no hope of achieving anything hy giving 
France more time to implement resolution 611 (VII), 
since every day that passed increased the domination 
of the settlers over the majority of the population, to 
the point where the French Government itself would 
have some difficulty in changing its policy. 
47. The truth was that the adoption of the thirteen­
Power draft resolution was a matter of urgency if the 
demands of the cold war were to be prevented irom 
striking a further and perhaps fatal blow to the Charter 
of the United Nations by stifling the complaints of the 
Tunisians. 

48. Mr. FRANCO Y FRANCO (Dominican Re­
public) recalled that in connexion with draft resolution 
A/C.l/L.63 on the Moroccan question, which it had 
opposed, his delegation had adduced a number of 
arguments which applied equally well to the Tunisian 
question. The fact that the concept of domestic jurisdic­
tion had been strengthened by the substitution of the 
word "essentially" for the word "exclusively" in Ar­
ticle 2, paragraph 7, of the Charter. While that wording 
did not perhaps exclude the possibility of a General 
Assembly recommendation in a matter governed by 
international treaties, in such cases the parties must 
give their consent, instead of disagreeing, as they did 
in the present case, as to the nature, scope and even 
the existence of the treaty by which they were bound. 
The General Assembly could not set itself up as an 
international court of justice. 
49. The delegation of the Dominican Republic had 
supported resolution 611 (VII) (S44th meeting), but 
in that case there had been no question of intervention 
by the General Assembly in a matter falling within the 
domestic jurisdiction of a State, and consequently of 
the infringement by the Assembly of a State's right of 
sovereignty. The draft resolution (A/C.ljL.64), on 
the other hand, provided for measures which repre­
sented a real intervention, and the delegation of the 
Dominican Republic would therefore be unable to vote 
for it. Always full of admiration for the Arab States 
as well as for France, and faithful to the principles of 
the Charter, his delegation adhered to the wishes ex­
pressed in resolution 611 (VII). Great efforts still 
had to be made if the spirit of mutual understanding 
was to be achieved which would enable the Tunisian 
people to exercise the right of self-determination in due 
course. Only a few months, however, had passed since 
the last session; it would be untimely and inadvisable 
to take steps likely to lead to results quite contrary to 
those desired. 
50. The primary mission of the United Nations was 
to establish an atmosphere of harmony. The thirteen­
Power draft resolution ( A/C.ljL.64), however, far 



108 General Assembly-Eighth Session-First Committee 

from leading to constructive results, would only threaten 
peace by exacerbating the resentment of the Tunisian 
people. 
51. l\lr. NAJAR (Israel) reaffirmed the statements 
made by his delegation at the seventh session (54 5th 
meeting). The juridical aspects of the Tunisian ques­
tion were similar to those of the Moroccan quest:on and 
he \';oulcl not repr:at what he had said a few days 
before on that subject. Apart from the juridical con­
siderations. the question before the Committee was 
not that of the right of the Tunisian people to self­
determination, which was not involved. The real prob­
blem was to decide how the General Assemblv could 
contribute to a peaceful and constructive set-tlement 
of the Fraaco-Tunisi:m dispute. The previous year, 
wh~n confronted with questions of international law 
rai sed by the Tunisian affair and with the complexity 
of the historical facts and interests involved, his dele­
gation, like many others, lnd advoe:J.ted negotiation. 
52. The cu:Tent and not the past situation shoulcl be 
examined. The former 1\.esident, ?l'lr. de Hauteclocque, 
whose relations "·ith the Bey of Tunis had left some­
thing to be desired, had been replaced by l\lr. Pierre 
Voizard. On 10 December 1952, the Syrian representa­
tive had remarked (54 2nd meeting) that the Bey en­
joyed the whole-hearted suprort of the Tunisian 
people. The current conve;·sations between the Bey and 
l\lr. Voizard should therefore be heeded . At the 
inaugural audience of 26 September 1953, Mr. Voizard 
hac! stated that France intended to continue with the 
friendly development of Tunisian institutions within 
the framework of Tunisian sovereignty. The Bey had 
replied that the uselessness of violence had been recog­
nized and that, as reason had triumphed, mutual under­
standing and confidence would be restored. The Bey 
had noted :-,rr. Voizard's statement and had asserted 
that by undertaking-by full agreement between both 
parties-to fulfil legitimate Tunisian aspirations, France 
would have further reason to deserve the gratitude 
of his country. Since 26 September no new development 
had occurred to change those favourable conditions. 
Hence the propitious atmosphere should be encour­
aged by adjusting Ceneral Assembly action to current 
circumstances. Draft resolution A/C.l/L.64 did not 
meet the needs of the times and his delegation could 
not support it. 
53. Mr. WILLIA~1S (United Kingdom) observed 
that, like the qucstion of l\lorocco, the Tunisian ques­
tion had been placed on the agenda to enable Members 
to state their views on the relations between France 
and the territories of which France was the protecting 
Power, and to influence the internal policy of the 
French c;overnment in .i'dorocco and Tunisia. The First 
Committee, however, ha.cl no competence in the matter, 
since relations between Tunisia and France were gov­
erned hy the Treaty of Bardo and the Convention of 
La ~Ia.r sa., which assigned the conduct of Tunisia's 
foreign affairs to France. 
54. The United Kingdom delegation would accord­
ingly vote against the thirteen-Power draft resolution, 
as it involved intervention in the domestic affairs of 
France. 
55. IJr. l\ll1NRO ( New Zealand) said his delegation 
would vote against th:.: draft resolution ( A/C.l/L.64) 
because it involved direct interference in Franco-Tu­
nisian relations. 

------· 
Printed in U.S.A. 

·----

56. The First Committee had the right to discuss the 
Tunisian question, for the special relations existing 
between France and Tunisia, together with the facts 
of the Tunisian problem, constituted a subject of inter­
national discussion. The draft resolution, however, 
represented an act of direct, illegal and unwarranted 
interference. Taken together, paragraphs 1 (a) and 
1 (c) amounted to a demand for the granting of im­
mediate independence to Tunisia, a demand which the 
United Nations was not competent to make, even in 
the form of a recommendation. 

57. Mr. NINCIC (Yugoslavia) said he would sup­
port the thirteen-Power draft resolution ( AjC.1jL.64), 
the text corresponding to which, on the question of Mo­
rocco, had already won his delegation's support. Not 
only did the General Assembly have competence in the 
matter, but it would be failing in its duty if it did not 
take up a matter which had such an important bearing 
on the Charter. 1 

58. Draft resolution A/C.l/L.64 indicated the correct 
course and would enable the United Nations to attain 
its objectives in a realistic spirit by helping the Tunisian 
people to achieve self-determination in a peaceful man­
ner, and thereby removing the danger to peace which 
Franco-Ttu~isian relations constituted. 

59. Mr. ABDEL-RAZEK (Egypt) stated that the 
delegations which, in a spirit of conciliation, had agreed 
that the l\1oroccan and Tunisian questi ons should be 
placed at the head of the agenda now requested that 
the vote should be postponed until the following Mon­
day. He therefore moved that the meeting should be 
adjourned until the following Monday. 

60. The CHAIRMAN pointed out that all delegations 
would certainly have an opportunity of speaking at the 
plenary meeting and of submitting further draft reso­
lutions. 

61. He put the motion for the adjournment to the vote. 
A vote was tahe1l by roll call. 

Iran, havi11g been drawn by lot by the Chairman, 
was called upon to vote first. 

In favour: Iran, Iraq, Lebanon, Liberia, Mexico, Pa­
kistan, Paraguay, Peru, Philippines, Poland, Saudi 
Arabia , Syria, Thailand, Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Re­
public, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, Uruguay, 
Yemen, Yugosla\'ia, Afganistan, Doli\'ia, Burma, Byelo­
russian Soviet Socialist Republic, China, Cuba, Czecho­
slov:lkia, Egypt, Ethiopia, Greece, GuatC'mala, India, 
Indonesia. 

Against: New ZralaiHI. Nicaragua, Panama, Union 
of South Africa, United Kingdom of Great Britain and 
Northern I relancl, United States of America, Australia, 
Belgium. Canada, Chile, Colombia, Dominican Republic. 

Abstaini11g: Israel, Luxembourg, Netherlands, Nor­
way, Sweden, Turkey, Venezuela, Argentina, Brazil, 
Denmark, Ecuador, Haiti, Honduras. 

The motio11 was adopted b~>' 31 ·votes to 12, with 13 
abstentions. 

62. Mr. KYROU (Greece) said he h::td supported 
the motion for adjournment on the understanding that 
the vote would be taken at the beginning of the next 
meeting and that any further draft resolutions would be 
circul:Jtecl t\\·enty-four hours in advance. 

The meeting rose at 5.40 p.m. 

:Of--42200-Novembcr 1953-2,000 




